# A FARM SAFETY REFERENCE GUIDE FROM

# RAM MUTUAL INSURANCE

# FARM SAFETY MANUAL

Note: RAM Mutual Insurance Company has prepared this template to help you develop your own, personalized, employee farm safety policies, and handbook. RAM Mutual does not make endorsements of any of the provided text or policies. The wording and policies contained in this template should be customized to reflect your operation, your goals, policies, and employment practices. Employers must comply with all state and federal safety practices and laws. Please consult with the appropriate professionals on questions relating to farm safety practices.

# **Contents**

Safety Management	3
Accident Analysis	.4
Safety and Health Meetings	_6
Safety Committees	8
Employee Safety and Health	10
Treatment of Sick or Injured Employees	12
Job Safety Analysis	14
Safety and Health Audits	15
Fire Prevention and Protection	16
Recordkeeping	18
Safety Program and Policy General Policy Responsibilities	
General Safety Rules	20
Safety Disciplinary Policy	_20
Employee Orientation Safety Checklist	_21
Farm Machine Safety Training	22
Personal Work Rules	_23
First Aid Procedures	_23
Procedure for Injury or Illness on the Job	24
Employee Safety Meetings Safety Meeting Form	24 25
Employee's Report of Injury Form	26
Farm Safety Assessment	27

# **SAFETY MANAGEMENT**

Section 1

Workers' compensation claims for needless injuries and illnesses are not a wise expenditure. You can prevent many claims with proper management. The management group confronts many problems that require immediate attention and which often divert attention from safety and health activities.

When this happens, it is likely that accidents and injuries will increase significantly, and as a result, the management/owner groups spends dollars better spent elsewhere to cover workers' compensation costs. All employees also must share a commitment to a safe workplace environment as it is their own health they help protect. Businesses need to develop safe work practices and communicate them effectively to employees. As businesses employ many people performing a variety of work activities they must develop specific safe work practices for each department, depending on the nature of the work performed.

Safe work practices supplement other management actions such as proper workplace design and integrating safety into all job functions. Be sure to develop safe working practices that are reasonable and specific. Practices that you that cannot enforce will potentially impair the effectiveness of other safe work practices.

The most effective safe work practices are those in which the employees performing the work help to develop. People tend to buy into the safety process more if they are involved in the process. Participation in executive, building, and departmental employee safety teams also helps educate employees on potential accident causes and methods to control and eliminate them. Write safe work practices in language that is easily understandable and which emphasizes the proper way to do the job rather than what is prohibited. For example, say "Use a ladder to reach ..." instead of, "Don't stand on a chair to ...". Give new employees a written copy of the general safe work practices and any department-specific practices they will need to follow to do their jobs without injury or illness.

Make safety training an ongoing process. The management group and safety teams should frequently review general and area-specific safe work practices with employees. All employees working in or visiting various other areas than their own need an understanding of safe work practices in all those working areas. Developing safe work practices also is an ongoing process. Do not consider the practices cast in stone. Safety teams need to review them periodically and revise them to keep them up to date.

# **ACCIDENT ANALYSIS**

Section 2

Accident analysis is primarily a fact-finding procedure. The facts are used to prevent a recurrence of similar accidents. Properly handled, accident analysis also increases employee safety and health awareness and builds rapport between the administrative group and certified employees.

Eliminating hazardous situations reduces injuries and illnesses. It is easier and much more cost effective to eliminate and reduce hazards than it is to teach employees to live with hazards in the work environment.

Identifying all accident causal factors so you can take corrective action is the objective of an effective accident analysis. The analysis can shed light on unsafe or hazardous conditions, poor decisions or behaviors, a lack of administrative group supervisory accountability, poorly defined responsibilities, and inadequate or non-existent procedures. Even minor injuries can reveal accident causal factors which, if corrected, can prevent other, more serious injuries. Therefore, analyze minor injuries or even close calls as thoroughly as a serious injury.

Immediately following an accident:

- Ensure the employee receives immediate medical care.
- Start the accident-analysis process promptly.
- Maintain conditions at the accident scene as much as possible.
- Involve the supervisor, the affected employee, and any witnesses.
- Form a fact-finding committee in the event of serious accidents.

At the minimum, you should assemble the following information:

- injured employee's name;
- date and time of injury;
- occupation and task being performed at the time of the injury;
- normal work hours;
- department;
- · address:
- sex;
- age or date of birth;
- Social Security number;
- · length of service;
- physician and hospital name;
- type and extent of injury;
- description of accident or illness scenario;
- analysis of causal factors;
- recommended corrective action;
- injured employee's statement;
- · witness statements; and
- name of person completing the form and the date.

Photographs and drawings may help clarify the report information. Use the information from all accidents to get a complete picture of how safety is being managed, to identify what changes might be necessary, and to develop justification for addressing the accident's causal factors to prevent future injuries or illnesses.

Management group review of accident investigation reports is important in that it raises awareness of what hazards exist and what has been done or must be done to eliminate the hazards.

Accident analysis is an effective tool only if appropriate follow-up action is taken.

# **SAFETY AND HEALTH MEETINGS**

Section 3

Businesses have an array of job classifications and various buildings. Thus, businesses need several levels of active employee safety and health meetings and safety involvement teams. This enables the development of continuity across the company from building to building.

Here's how it can work:

- An executive safety involvement team is primarily composed of the administrative group with a facilitator, such as the owner.
- The owner/manager usually informs the members of the employees' safety program about policies to be adopted and followed. This ensures all employees' safety within the work place.
- The manager usually informs the owner of the workers' compensation costs per year.
- The owner and manager work together to maintain an ongoing safety process keeping yearly workers' compensation costs to a minimum. A building safety involvement team is composed of a facilitator, usually one of the administrative group members such as the building manager.

Additional member representatives for each job classification within that building are also part of the team. This team:

- creates positive solutions to situations (this is not a gripe session);
- conducts building safety audits; and
- assigns tasks to complete needed solutions. A departmental safety team is composed of a facilitator, usually one of the administrative group members such as the business manager or the supervisor of a particular area across all buildings.

Additional member representatives for each department or area should be a part of the safety team. This team:

- comes up with positive solutions to situations (this is not a gripe session);
- · conducts departmental safety audits; and
- assigns tasks to complete needed solutions.

Assign responsibility at each level of team involvement. After all, this is a matter of life or limb in many situations.

The purpose of employee safety and health meetings is to discuss significant information needed to prevent accidents and illnesses. An administrative group person usually convenes and facilitates these meetings, with all employees present.

Effective safety meetings can help promote understanding, create commitment, and allow employees to participate in the safety and health process. Safety and health meetings also help develop a sense of teamwork. They provide an opportunity for certified and classified employees and the administrative group to engage in give-and-take discussions on a variety of safety topics. Providing how-to information and engaging in healthy dialogue about safety and health issues helps employees perform their jobs in a safer manner.

Safety and health meetings are important in getting employees actively involved in your efforts to maintain a safe and healthful working environment. Use meetings to request employees' ideas about safety policies and procedures, for setting up employee teams to develop safe work practices, and to encourage employees to report unsafe conditions.

Effective safety and health meetings stimulate employees to think about safety and health concerns. Schedule meetings on a regular basis. You can use discussion items and topics such

as those found in the Safety Checklists to plan meetings and provide an outline for discussion. Develop meeting plans in advance to foster maximum employee participation and cover issues thoroughly.

Successful meeting tips include:

- Schedule regular meetings once a week, twice a month, or, at the very least, monthly.
- Plan for 15- to 30-minute meetings. Start and end on time.
- Respect everyone's opinion.
- Use a reference source, OSHA, Safety Checklists, or contact RAM for additional topics.
- Encourage all to participate by asking questions or seeking suggestion.;
- · Seek quiet areas to meet.
- Devote the meeting exclusively to health and safety matters.
- Use visual aids to supplement but not replace your presentation.
- Preview visual aids and prepare introductory remarks. Come prepared.
- Prepare and distribute a meeting summary and minutes of the last meeting.
- If discussing an accident or illness, focus on facts surrounding the incident, the injury, and causes.
- Discussion of failure to adhere to a safety procedure should cover why the behavior was unsafe, the potential hazards, and constructive discussion on following procedures.

Problem solving and decision-making routines include fishbone diagramming, brainstorming, multi-voting, group normalization, high-low grid, consensus, decision analysis and force field analysis.

# **SAFETY COMMITTEES**

Section 4

Many organizations do not take advantage of formal safety committees. Often, organizations underestimate the value of these committees. However, safety committees have the potential to significantly affect workers' compensation costs by enhancing the organization's accident prevention process.

# **Purpose**

Safety committees foster communication, an important component of the organization's safety process. Employee involvement in workplace safety provides many advantages. The business benefits by tapping into a reservoir of knowledge that employees possess and by incorporating supervisors' perspectives into the decision-making process. Close collaboration between employees and supervisors encourages a closer working relationship and provides opportunities for greater understanding.

It is important the administrative group recognizes the contribution that safety committees can make with regard to accident prevention and cost containment in their organization. Administrative support is important to achieve successful outcomes. Two-way communication is crucial for achieving success. Employees need to believe the administration is listening, that they have a say in safety-related matters, and that their opinions are important. Participation in group decision-making and problem-solving discussions helps to involve employees in the school's safety processes and creates a sense of ownership.

The safety committee is not the safety coordinator's committee. The committee should be representative of all departments. Consequently, the safety coordinator should not be the chairperson. The chairperson should be a regular committee member. The safety coordinator should attend as an ex-officio member of the committee.

It is helpful to elect a vice-chairperson or secretary to assist with meeting minutes, communication, scheduling, and follow-up. Some committees use a system wherein the vice-chair assumes the chairperson's role at the end of the term and a new vice-chair is elected for the next term. This ensures continuity and allows the new chairperson to learn important aspects of committee operation while acting as vice-chair.

# **Functions and Responsibilities**

Committees function best when they define their own mission and objectives. Functions vary by organization. What works for one may not work for another.

You may use the following list of functions as guidance for developing responsibilities:

- Review the safety and health program for the school system.
- Conduct regular safety audits to identify safety problems with equipment, procedures, or behaviors.
- Conduct safety training for the employees.
- Take action to address and correct safety-related problems.
- Develop safe work practices and policies.
- · Accompany compliance inspectors.
- Represent other employees' views on safety matters.

The committee should regularly meet to review the safety of operations, the adequacy of safety training programs, and the organization's illness and injury records. With this information, the

committee can participate in establishing the school's safety goals and objectives. Committees also should work toward achievement of agreed upon safety and health goals.

# **Benefits**

As the business finds more and more ways to involve employees in workplace safety, the momentum for working safely will build. Employees will feel good about their contribution to the safety of their own workplace and emerge as stakeholders. Viewed as a constructive resource, labor/management committees that focus on safety can provide very effective strategies for safety and health. The financial and human benefits include reduced costs and the preservation of human resources.

# **EMPLOYEE SAFETY AND HEALTH**

Section 5

A business system's safety and health training may encompass more than 12 types of programs for various groups of certified and classified employees either to have a good working knowledge or just to have an awareness.

RAM has developed a safety check list. The safety programs' list of questions is a quick view of the program needs. Some program/plans are:

- first-aid training;
- · electrical safety;
- lock out/tag out;
- emergency action;
- fire prevention;
- hazard communication;
- hot work;
- respiratory protection;
- hearing conservation;
- confined space entry;
- · crane and hoist;
- personal protective equipment

indoor air quality

chemical safety

bloodborne pathogens

Begin safety and health training at the beginning of every year, when a person is transferred to another department or when learning a new job. Cross training is extremely important for your safety and health process when employees are helping out in other departments. An orientation and training check list is available to provide assistance.

Each administrative group should have a procedure for educating employees in the department's safe work practices and for following up. This ensures the education process was successful. While a good safety orientation program can help shape a new employee's perspective on job safety, the administrative group often neglects to take advantage of this opportunity.

An effective technique often used during orientation involves following a check list containing specific items for discussion. The administrative group may find using a check list especially helpful. Consistency and confidence in the training are beneficial. A well-planned and well-executed safety orientation forms the foundation for each individual's future safety and health performance. Each administrative group person (i.e. business manager or owner) should ensure that new employees receive a copy of specific safe work practices and procedures, also that the employees understand them.

# Effective job safety training

- 1. Explain the training objective and the reason it is important to the employee. A person is more interested in learning if he or she understands why the information is important.
- 2. Break down the total job or procedure into specific parts and identify each key step. By understanding how safety integrates into each step of a job, an employee learns to safely and correctly perform the job.

- 3. Demonstrate the proper way to do the job or procedure. Explanations of how to perform a task usually are insufficient. Perform one step at a time pausing to emphasize key points. Encourage questions to ensure he or she fully understands.
- 4. Ask the person to perform the job or procedure describing at each step not only what is going to be done, but also why. By letting the employee recite and perform the job, you will learn if he or she understands and can safely perform the task.
- 5. Return periodically to see how the employee is doing and to see if there are any questions or problems. Since early identification and correction of improper work procedures will help an employee develop safe and efficient work habits, the follow-up process is an essential element. Continue safety and health training on a regular basis. Regular training might include:
- monthly safety and health meetings;
- · regular personal safety contacts;
- safety training related to changes in work processes or procedures; and
- safety training related to the nature of the work or safety compliance issues, such as hazard communications, fire safety, and emergency procedures.

Assistance with your safety training needs is available from RAM Mutual which offers a variety of training materials and other resources including publications.

# TREATMENT OF SICK OR INJURED EMPLOYEES

Section 6

Immediately report all work-related injuries and illnesses regardless of severity. Make sure all employees receive prompt first aid and medical care. Ensure all health employees and/or designated first-aid volunteers are trained and certified in both first aid and cardiopulmonary resuscitation. You should also develop and implement a medical-emergency response plan. To implement it successfully, all employees must be familiar with the plan. If possible, routinely practice it.

Your medical response plan should contain the following information:

- emergency telephone numbers;
- roles and responsibilities of first-aid providers;
- identification of all types of medical emergencies;
- training in techniques to prevent the spread of bloodborne pathogens;
- the medical-emergency response process for each type of medical emergency including the provider and method of transportation; and
- how to report and document the medical incident and response.

Make first-aid supplies available to employees. These must be physician-approved, inspected monthly, and replenished as necessary.

# **Training**

The business must ensure those individuals who provide medical-emergency assistance are trained not only to provide first aid, but also to prevent the transmission of blood-borne pathogens. Conduct training at the time of employment and annually thereafter.

At a minimum, the training should cover these topics:

- a copy and explanation of OSHA's bloodborne pathogen standard (29 CFR 1910.1030);
- causes and symptoms of bloodborne diseases;
- disease transmission modes;
- the business exposure-control plan and how to obtain a copy;
- tasks and activities that might cause exposure to infectious materials;
- methods to prevent or reduce exposures, including engineering controls, work practices, and personal protective equipment (PPE);
- proper use, location, handling, removal, decontamination, and disposal of PPE;
- reasons for selecting PPE;
- information on hepatitis B vaccine;
- what to do in case of contact with blood or other potentially infectious materials;
- post-exposure evaluation and follow-up actions; and
- signs, labels, and color-coding requirements.

It is essential that employees have a thorough understanding of how to report injuries and illnesses and how to obtain appropriate care. Prompt care frequently prevents medical complications that might result from otherwise minor injuries.

# **Policy and Procedures**

• Employees should have a managed care organization (MCO) card that explains procedures to follow in case of injury.

- Create a policy establishing a process for claims management between the administrative group and all employees.
- As an example, follow MCO card procedures for medical treatment from the business' preselected medical provider, report the injury immediately, and the medical provider reports back to administrative group.
- Collaboration occurs between the business, administrative group, and employee unions to provide wage continuation and return-to-work strategies.

If referral to a medical provider is necessary, use a medical treatment request form created by your business. Use of such a form greatly improves communication and understanding between all parties (employer, employee, and physician) and functions as a valuable tool to facilitate the medical treatment process and augments the workers' compensation process.

The administrative group supervisor who initiates the form can accompany the employee to the physician or clinic. Following treatment, the doctor or nurse completes the form and returns two copies to the school. The supervisor receives one as does the workers' compensation manager. The employee can carry these copies. In instances involving serious injury or illness, the form may be dispensed with at the time of the incident to avoid delay in obtaining treatment. After the situation is in control, the doctor or nurse can complete the form.

# **JOB SAFETY ANALYSIS**

Section 7

For years, job safety analysis (JSA) has been a simple, but effective means to identify hazards and potentially unsafe procedures associated with a specific task or job. You can use the analysis process to identify hazards and educate employees in safe procedures. JSA techniques are effective tools for all employees because they efficiently analyze the job or task and produce detailed information on task- specific accident risks, process improvements, and control measures.

JSAs may not fit into all employee tasks. In certain areas, such as custodial, maintenance and others that the safety involvement team discovers, a JSA will be beneficial. When considering where to use the JSA process, analyze first the tasks or jobs having the poorest accident experience or those with the greatest potential for injury. By establishing priorities, the JSA process focuses attention on areas that can have the greatest impact on accident prevention. A JSA provides a systematic means to take advantage of the workers' previous experience and knowledge and increases employee involvement in establishing safety awareness while developing safe work practices.

Accomplishing these objectives requires each administrative group person to:

- understand the objectives and means of analyzing jobs element by element;
- recognize the JSA process as an effective tool, and incorporate it into the regular accidentprevention and safety-management process;
- develop and implement a correction process that responds to identified problems in a timely manner;
- review the results and take action, if appropriate, on all JSAs completed in their employee tasks:
- retain a copy of all approved safe job procedures developed as a result of a JSA;
- educate and train employees using the information developed through the JSA process; and
- regularly observe employees, and ensure they use safe work practices.

In practice, this means the person conducting the JSA must competently assess each job element and identify potential hazards or risks. Assume, for example, the task is to analyze usage of a pressurized-water fire extinguisher (this is not a work task, but it should be a well-understood process).

The process might look like this:

- Remove the extinguisher from its wall bracket, and identify the potential hazards. Employees should perform the task, if possible, with the trainer acting as a coach. The trainer should help when necessary until the process proceeds smoothly.
- Identify each succeeding element such as carrying the extinguisher to the fire until you have broken down the entire job into its elements. Again, identify such hazards as the weight of the extinguisher, or slips, trips, and falls.
- After the analysis is complete, list all possible methods or actions associated with each element that will eliminate, reduce, or prevent an accident or illness. Agree on which accident prevention techniques you will use.

This completes the step-by-step job outline and associated safe work practices you must integrate into each step of the job.

# **SAFETY AND HEALTH AUDITS**

Section 8

These audits are useful routines for executive, building, and departmental safety involvement teams to conduct at a consistently scheduled time. Evaluate such hazards as physical, electrical, chemical, fire, slips/trips/falls, hand-tool safety, ladders, fall protection, portable and stationary power tool guarding, confined space entry, and ergonomics.

Upon completion of this routine, address and immediately correct any imminent danger. Then, schedule the removal and correction of all other hazards to protect all employees.

# **FIRE PREVENTION**

Section 9

Fires require three important elements to burn – fuel, oxygen, and heat.

# Examples include:

- Fuel sources gasoline, diesel fuel, paint, paint thinner, wood scraps, cardboard, paper, and trash
- Heat sources torches, matches, cigarettes, heaters, and lights
- Oxygen present both in the atmosphere and in compressed gas cylinders

Fuel is the easiest element to remove. Concentrate on housekeeping measures to help prevent fires by disposing of scrap materials before they accumulate. Store flammable and combustible materials away from heat sources.

# Fire and Fire Extinguisher Classification

There are four types of fires:

- Class A Ordinary combustibles like wood, paper, cloth and most plastics. The most effective extinguishing agent for Class A fires is water or solutions that are largely water, because the cooling effect will reduce the burning material to below its ignition temperature.
- Class B Flammable or combustible liquids, such as petroleum products and grease. Agents that smother the fire by inhibiting oxygen (CO2, dry chemical, halon, or foam) or inhibit the chemical chain reaction work best for extinguishing this type of fire.
- Class C Electrical equipment. This type of fire requires a non-conductive extinguishing agent, such as CO2, dry chemical, or halon.
- Class D Combustible metals, such as aluminum, magnesium, zirconium, and titanium. The use of water and other conventional extinguishing agents is ineffective and may even cause a violent reaction. These fires can be extinguished with specially prepared agents.

# **Fire Extinguisher Use and Maintenance**

Train only those employees required to use extinguishers in the event of a fire for the proper use of fire extinguishers.

*Note*: If the business emergency action plan says everyone must evacuate the building and not fight the fire, employees do not need fire-extinguisher training.

We recommend annual, documented training of employees authorized to use fire extinguishers.

These employees need to know:

- location of fire extinguishers;
- how to operate fire extinguishers and the hazards involved with the early stages of firefighting;
- classes of fires and classifications of fire extinguishers;
- location of telephones and how to contact the fire department;
- how to check a fire extinguisher to see that it has been re-charged; and
- who to notify when a fire extinguisher has been used and needs re-charging.

Use fire extinguishers in an upright position. First, discharge the extinguisher approximately 8 feet from the fire. Work quickly, as the contents of an extinguisher will empty in about one minute. In an enclosed area, you may want to be on your knees with your head no higher than the height of the fire extinguisher. The best air to breathe is between knee level and the floor. When using a water-type extinguisher, direct the stream at the base of the fire and move forward.

With a dry-chemical extinguisher, attack the nearest edge of the fire and move forward while sweeping the nozzle rapidly from side to side. If you are using CO2 to fight a flammable liquid fire, spray the CO2 in a sweeping motion to sweep the flames off the burning surface. Attack the nearest edge of the flame and move forward.

Be careful when using this type of extinguisher in an enclosed area because the CO2 will cause oxygen deprivation. When two or more employees are using fire extinguishers on a flammable-liquid fire, they must act as a team working from the same side of the fire and making sure the fire does not re-ignite between them.

Maintain all firefighting equipment in good operating condition and periodically inspect it. Immediately replace defective equipment. Conduct an annual maintenance check of fire extinguishers and record the maintenance date.

### **Fire Alarms**

In the event of a fire, anyone should be able to contact the fire department quickly. Post signs instructing personnel how and where to turn on an alarm, whether it is by telephone, siren or horn. Also, ensure fire lanes are unobstructed, so firefighters always have easy access to the building.

# RECORDKEEPING

Section 11

Recordkeeping provides a controlled and consistent method of documenting safety data and a method to summarize loss-prevention activities.

Reasons for gathering and maintaining good recordkeeping systems are based on:

- gathering information to reduce accidents, injuries, and illnesses;
- maintaining regulatory compliance;
- tracking and analyzing data and activities;
- providing a source of information for management; and
- justifying programs and budgets.

Organizations have different recordkeeping needs. For best results, use developed forms that meet your organization's needs and challenges.

## SAFETY PROGRAM AND POLICY

# **General Policy**

# (Insert detailed safety program, if desired)

(Insert Company Name) is committed to providing a safe and enjoyable workplace that is free of recognized safety hazards. We strive to maintain a high standard of safety throughout all our operations and to ensure that no employee is required to work under any conditions, which are hazardous or unsanitary.

Each individual within our organization is responsible for safety. By accepting mutual responsibility to operate safely, we will all contribute to the safety and well being of our fellow co-workers.

# Responsibilities

# (Insert description of responsibilities to reflect operation, if desired)

Responsibilities for safety and health include the establishment and maintenance of an effective communication system between workers, supervisors and management.

Specific safety and health responsibilities for company personnel are as follows:

- A. <u>Owners and Managers.</u> Owner and manager participation in and support of safety and health programs are essential. Managers will participate in safety meetings, accident investigations and work site inspections. Managers will be accountable for safety and injury prevention performance in their specific work areas.
- B. <u>Supervisors.</u> The safety and health of the employees they supervise is a primary responsibility of our supervisors. Supervisory duties include:
  - 1. Ensure that all safety and health rules, regulations, policies and procedures are understood by conducting pre-job safety orientations with all workers and reviewing rules as the job or conditions change or when individual workers show a specific need.
  - 2. Require the proper care and use of all required personal protective equipment.
  - 3. Identify and eliminate job hazards expeditiously through monthly safety inspections.
  - 4. Inform and train all employees on the hazardous chemicals they <u>MAY</u> encounter under normal working conditions or during an emergency situation.
  - 5. Conduct monthly safety meetings.
  - 6. Receive and take initial action on employee suggestions.
  - 7. Train employees (new and experienced) in the safe and efficient methods of performing their jobs and operating equipment.
  - 8. Review injury trends and establish prevention measures.
  - 9. Attend safety meetings and actively participate in addressing any safety suggestions.
  - 10. Encourage employee participation in the safety and health program.
  - 11. Actively follow the progress of injured workers.

# C. **Employees.**

- 1. Follow all job safety rules which apply to their specific jobs.
- 2. Report hazardous conditions to their supervisor.
- 3. Attend and take active part in safety meetings.
- 4. Report all on the job injuries promptly.

- 5. Report all equipment damage to supervisor immediately.
- 6. Follow instructions ask questions of your supervisor when in doubt about any part of the job.
- 7. Observe and comply with all safety signs and regulations.
- 8. Only operate equipment you are qualified to operate. When in doubt, ask for directions.
- 9. Bring any safety concerns to the attention of management.

# **GENERAL SAFETY RULES**

# (Insert description of responsibilities to reflect operation, if desired)

- 1. Always store materials in a safe manner. Tie down or support piles if necessary to prevent falling, rolling or shifting.
- 2. Do not block aisles, traffic lanes, fire exits, gangways or stairs.
- 3. Avoid shortcuts use ramps, stairs, walkways, ladders, etc.
- 4. Do not use tools with split, broken or loose handles, burred or mushroomed heads. Keep cutting tools sharp and carry all tools in a container.
- 5. All electrical power tools (unless double insulated), extension cords and equipment shall be properly grounded.
- 6. All electrical power tools and extension cords shall be properly insulated. Damaged cords shall be replaced.
- 7. Know the location and use of fire extinguishing equipment and the appropriate emergency response procedures.
- 8. Proper guards or shields must be installed on all power tools before use. Do not use any tools without the guards in their proper working condition.
- 9. Do not operate any power tool or equipment unless you are trained in its operation and authorized to use it.
- 10. Use tools only for their designed purpose.
- 11. Do not remove, deface or destroy any warning, danger sign or barricade, or interfere with any form of protective device or practice provided for your use or which is being used by others.

# SAFETY DISCIPLINARY POLICY

### (Insert disciplinary policy consistent with employee handbook, if desired)

Our company believes that in order to maintain a safe and healthy workplace that the employees must observe all company policies as they relate to safety on the job. The following disciplinary policy is in effect and will be applied to all safety or health violations.

The following steps will be followed unless in the unlikely event that the seriousness of the violation would dictate going directly to Step 2 or Step 3.

- 1. A first time offense will be discussed orally between the supervisor and the employee. This will be done as soon as possible.
- 2. A second time offense will be followed up in written form and a copy of this written documentation entered into the employee's personnel folder.
- 3. A third time violation will result in time off or possible termination, depending upon the seriousness of the violation.

# **EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION SAFETY CHECKLIST**

# (Insert checklist that reflects safety program, if desired)

Employee's Name
Job Date Hired
This checklist is a guideline for conducting employee safety orientation for employees new to <u>(Add company name here)</u> . Once completed and signed by both supervisor and employee, it serves as documentation that orientation has taken place.
Place a check in each box to indicate that the subject has been covered.
<ul> <li>Explain the Company Safety Program. Including:</li> <li>1. Orientation</li> <li>2. On the job training</li> <li>3. Safety meetings</li> <li>4. Incident investigation and injury reporting</li> <li>5. Disciplinary action procedures</li> </ul>
Personal protective equipment required.
Line of communication and responsibility.
☐ General overview of operation, procedures, methods and hazards as they relate to the specific job arduties.
Pertinent safety rules.
First aid supplies, equipment, and training.
☐ Emergency action plan.
☐ How, when, and to whom, to report all injuries.
☐ Disciplinary procedures for violation of safety rules.
Other items
NOTE TO EMPLOYEE: DO NOT SIGN unless ALL items are covered and ALL questions are answered satisfactorily.
Date
Supervisor's signature
Date
Employee's signature

# **FARM MACHINE SAFETY TRAINING**

# (Insert machine safety training program specific to your operation, if desired)

Employee's name	Date	
Employer	Trainer	
Before you use farm machinery you must:		
Review the operator manual Conduct a pre-inspection of equipment Check shields and guards Ensure that the PTO master shield is in place		

You must observe the following safety rules each time you use farm machinery:

- Use handrails when getting on and off the tractor. Do not jump.
- Securely fasten seat belt if the tractor has ROPS.
- If possible, avoid operating the tractor near ditches, embankments, and holes, reduce speed when turning, crossing slopes, and maneuvering through rough, slick, or muddy surfaces.
- Stay off slopes too steep for safe operation.
- Watch where you are going, especially at row ends, on the roads, and around trees.
- Do not permit others to ride.
- Operate the tractor smoothly, no jerky turns, starts, or stops.
- Hitch only to the drawbar and hitch points recommended by the tractor manufacturer.
- When tractor is stopped, set brakes securely and use parking lock.
- Shut off motor during refueling.
- When using public roads make sure that the machines have lights and are operational, and reflectors and a slow moving vehicle emblem is clearly visible.
- If operating the tractor on public roads one-half hour after sunset to one half-hour before sunrise, the tractor must have the necessary lights and reflector required by state laws.
- Always be seated when riding authorized vehicles (unless they are designed for standing.)
- Do not operate any motorized vehicle or equipment unless you are specifically authorized to do so by supervisor.
- Obey all speed limits and other traffic regulations.
- Always be aware of pedestrians and give them the right-of-way.
- Always inspect your vehicle or equipment before and after daily use.
- Never mount or dismount vehicles or equipment while they are still in motion.
- Do not dismount any vehicle without first shutting down the engine, setting the parking brake, and securing the load.
- Do not allow other persons to ride the hook or block, dump box, forks, bucket, or shovel of any equipment.
- Each operator must be knowledgeable of all hand signals and obey them.
- Each operator is responsible for the stability and security of their load.

These operation points are good safety procedures to practice. Workers must inform supervisors of needed safety corrections.

## **PERSONAL WORK RULES**

# (Insert personal work rules that apply to your operation, if desired)

- Report every injury, no matter how slight, to your supervisor immediately.
- Horseplay, fighting, gambling, possession of firearms and possession or use of alcoholic beverages or drugs, except as prescribed by a qualified physician, are strictly forbidden.
- Running on any agricultural site is strictly prohibited except in extreme emergencies.
- Wear clothing suitable for the weather and your work. Torn, loose clothing, cuffs, sleeves, etc. are hazardous and could cause injuries.
- Jewelry (rings, bracelets, neck chains, etc.) should not be worn.
- Hair must be worn at a length which will prevent it from being snagged or caught in the work
  process. Hair longer than shoulder length must be restrained, and up and out of the way. Simply
  tying back the hair may be more hazardous and may result in full scalping versus a partial loss of
  hair should it be caught in equipment.
- Proper eye protection must be worn where you are exposed to flying objects, dust, harmful rays, chemicals, flying particles, etc.
- Proper footwear must be worn on all agricultural sites; safety boots are highly recommended. The wearing of sport shoes, sandals, dress shoes and similar footwear is prohibited.
- Always use gloves, aprons or other protective clothing when handling rough materials, chemicals, and hot or cold objects.
- Special safety equipment is for your protection. Use it when required. Keep it in good condition and report loss or damage of it immediately.

### FIRST AID PROCEDURES

### (Insert First Aid procedure specific to your operation, if desired)

We have first aid qualified workers but we do not have "designated" first responders. First aid at the job site is done on a "Good Samaritan" basis.

If employees are involved in a situation involving blood, they should:

- Avoid skin contact with blood/OPIM (other potentially infectious materials) by letting the victim help as much as possible, and using gloves provided in first aid kit.
- Remove clothing, etc. with blood on it after rendering help.
- Wash thoroughly with soap and water to remove blood. A 10% chlorine bleach solution is good for disinfecting areas contaminated with blood (spills, etc).
- Report such first aid incidents within the shift to supervisors (time, date, blood presence, exposure, those helping).

If an exposure incident occurs, the company should make available immediately, appropriate:

- Post exposure evaluation
- Follow-up treatment
- Follow-up as listed in CDC guidelines

Bloodborne Pathogen Training covering above information should be conducted at safety meetings.

# PROCEDURE FOR INJURY OR ILLNESS ON THE JOB

# (Insert procedure for handling an injury specific to your operation, if desired)

- A. Owner or supervisor immediately take charge.
  - 1. Call 911 or local EMT service.
  - 2. Provide first aid as needed.
  - 3. Arrange for transportation depending on seriousness.
  - 4. Notify management if not already present.
  - 5. Do not move anything unless necessary, pending investigation of incident.
  - 6. Accompany or take injured person to doctor, hospital, home, etc. (depending on extent of injuries).
  - 7. Take injured person to family doctor if available.
  - 8. Remain with injured person until relieved.
  - 9. When the injured person's immediate family is known by the management or supervisor, they should properly notify these people, preferably in person or have an appropriate person do so.

## B. Documentation

- 1. Minor injuries (requiring doctor / outpatient care). After the emergency actions following an incident, an investigation of the incident will be conducted by the supervisor. The findings shall be documented on an incident investigation form.
- 2. Management is required to notify the Department of Labor –OSHA, within 8 hours, when a fatality occurs. Serious injuries also need to be reported within 8 hours to OSHA when 3 or more employees are hospitalized in an in-patient status as a result of the same event. OSHA's toll-free number is 1-800-321-OSHA(6742).

# Near Misses

- 1. All near misses (close calls) shall be reported to supervisor and investigated.
- 2. Near misses will be reviewed at monthly safety meetings or sooner if the situation warrants.

# **EMPLOYEE SAFETY MEETINGS**

# (Insert description of safety meetings specific to your operation, if desired)

- Safety meeting will be held at least once a month.
- The attendance and subjects discussed will be documented and maintained on file for one year.

# **SAFETY MEETING**

Company Name		Address	
Date	Time		# of employees attending
Subjects discussed			
Minutes:			
Attendees:			
Trainer Comments:			
Trainer Comments.			

# **EMPLOYEE'S REPORT OF INJURY FORM**

<u>Instructions</u>: This form can be used to report <u>all</u> work related injuries, illnesses, or "near miss" events (which could have caused an injury or illness) – *no matter how minor*. This information will help identify and correct hazards before they cause serious injuries. This form should be completed by employees as soon as possible and given to a supervisor for further action.

I am reporting a work related: ☐ Injury	□ Illness □ Near miss
Your Name:	
Job title:	
Supervisor:	
Have you told your supervisor about this inju	ury/near miss? □ Yes □ No
Date of injury/near miss:	Time of injury/near miss:
Names of witnesses (if any):	
Where, exactly, did it happen?	
What were you doing at the time?	
Describe step by step what led up to the injunecessary):	ury/near miss. (continue on the back if
What could have been done to prevent this	injury/near miss?
What parts of your body were injured? If a	near miss, how could you have been hurt?
Did you see a doctor about this injury/illness	s? □ Yes □ No
If yes, whom did you see?	Doctor's phone number:
Date:	Time:
Has this part of your body been injured before? ☐ Yes ☐ No	
If yes, when?	Employer:
Your signature (optional):	Date:

# FARM SAFETY ASSESSMENT

(Modify this check list to reflect your operation)

Date:	Performed By:
Location:	

Eme	rgency Preparedness
	Are emergency numbers, including the name of the nearest emergency medical facility, posted in accessible areas?
	Are directions to the farm/shop posted next to the phone or in an accessible area?
	Is there at least one person trained in First Aid/CPR on-site at all times?
	Are there designated places to go during a tornado, lightening storm, or emergency situation?
	Are fire extinguishers kept in each building near the exits, near flammable material storage, and hazardous operations (i.e., welding)?
	Are extinguishers visually inspected monthly and serviced annually to ensure proper charge?
	Have employees received hands-on training on how to use a fire extinguisher to extinguish incipient stage (i.e., beginning, initial) fires?
	Are exit doors and exit pathways maintained clear?
	Are exit doors labeled as exits and equipped with illuminated exit signs?
	Are manure pits fenced and/or posted with signs stating "Warning, Manure Pit, Do Not Enter" or similar language?
Pers	onal Protective Equipment/Hazard Assessment
	Has a Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) assessment form been completed and requirements established for the use of PPE?
	Are safety glasses with sideshields, at a minimum, required in the shop and during other activities where there is the hazard of eye injuries due to flying particles, dirt, etc?
	Is there an emergency station eyewash provided in the shop and emergency eyewash bottles provided in vehicles where there is the potential for eye contact with injurious or corrosive materials (i.e., cleaners, dirt, solvents, etc.)?
	Is hearing protection required during all operations/tasks where noise levels are at or above 85 dBA (i.e., generally at point where it is hard to hear conversations)?

	Are steel-toed shoes/boots required in the shop and during other activities where there are potential foot injuries due to crushing or puncture (i.e., heavy equipment, vehicles, material
	handling)?
Back	Injury Prevention/Safe Lifting
	Have employees been trained in safe lifting/back injury prevention techniques (i.e., posture, help with lifts, use carts and tools, minimize twisting, etc.)
Hous	ekeeping/Walking-Working Surfaces
	Is adequate lighting/emergency lighting provided in the shop?
	Are floors free of debris, clutter, and slip/trip hazards?
	Are storage shelves/racking rated for the weight of the load and anchored to the wall and floor?
	Are stacked materials stable, aligned, and stacked to a safe height?
Ladd	ers
	Are damaged ladders repaired or replaced (i.e., bent rungs, broken welds, missing feet)?
	Are ladders firmly secured to roof, platform, object when climbing (i.e., prevent sliding/slipping)?
Elect	
	Are electrical outlets near/in wet areas provided with GFCI protection?
	Do extension cords have ground plugs and are they NOT damaged, cut, frayed, taped?
	Are electrical cords not used in place of permanent wiring and NOT run across aisles, through walls or attached to building support structure?
	Are electrical panel doors closed and a clear distance of at least 36" maintained in front of them?
	Is mechanical equipment that is being serviced or maintained locked-out (lock and lock-out devices used to isolate equipment from energy sources preventing the accidental start-up or release of energy) and have employees that perform lock out activities been trained with this training documented?
Flam	mable Liquid Storage
	Are flammables stored in approved containers and cabinets away from sources of ignition?
	Are fuel tanks (i.e., gas, diesel, propane) double walled construction with spill containment (if over 1100 gallons) or otherwise protected from vehicle damage by barriers?
	Are "No Smoking Signs" posted on/near fuel tanks and is this policy obeyed?
	Are flammable liquid containers bonded and grounded during dispensing?
	Is Waste Oil recycled or disposed of on a regular basis to prevent abundant accumulations?

Mach	nine Guarding
	Are guards installed on grinding wheels, drill presses, and other shop equipment (Note: grinder work rests a maximum of 1/8 inch to wheel, tongue guard maximum of ½ inch to wheel)? Look
	at pulleys, fans, gears, conveyors, power tools, nip points, chains, etc.
	Equipment and power tool cords in good repair?
Vehi	cle Use Policy
	Is there a written vehicle policy that requires drivers to wear seat belts and prohibits the use of cell phones while driving?
	Are employee motor vehicle records (MVRs) reviewed at time of hire and on an annual basis?
	Are employees that operate powered vehicles (i.e., forklifts, scissors-lifts, bobcats) properly trained and has this training been documented?
	Are tractors equipped with roll over protection (ROPs) and are seat belts available and required?
	Are vehicles/equipment equipped with fire extinguishers and first-aid kits?
	Are vehicles/equipment provided with slow moving vehicle (SMV) signs in good condition?
	Are PTOs, belts, chains, pulleys, and sprockets guarded on all equipment?
Weld	ling Safety/Compressed Gas Storage
	Are oxygen and acetylene tanks in storage (or other incompatible compressed gases) separated by a distance of at least 20 feet?
	Are compressed gas cylinders chained (i.e., wall, cart, rack) and maintained upright, with regulator cap in place?
	Are compressed gas cylinders stored away from emergency exits?
	Is welding performed in a well ventilated area, away from combustible materials, and with a fire watch following welding activities?
Conf	ined Space Entry
	Are there silos, grain bins, and/or manure pits present? If so, are they entered?
	Is there a written procedure for confined space entry?
	Have employees been trained on confined space entry procedures?
	Is the air in these confined spaces monitored for hazardous atmospheres (oxygen, flammable gases, carbon monoxide, etc)?
	Are these spaces ventilated at least 30 minutes before entry and continually ventilated during entry?
	Is there at least one other employee as an "Attendant" while these spaces are entered?
	Is there a plan in place to rescue an employee if they become incapacitated?
Com	ments/Other Observations